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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Town Council
Town of East Haven
East Haven, Connecticut

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of East Haven, Connecticut, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the Town's management. Our responsibility
is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Town of East Haven, Connecticut, as of June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the
general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 23, 2009, on
our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 10 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it.
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Town of East Haven, Connecticut
Page Two

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of East Haven, Connecticut’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and the
accompanying financial information listed as supplemental schedules in the table of contents are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining
fund financial statements and other schedules as listed in the table of contents have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and
trend information have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Farmington, Connecticut
April 23,2009
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FINANCE DEPARTMENT

EasT HAVE PAUL S. RIZZA

Director of Finance

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

As management of the Town of East Haven, we offer readers of the Town of East Haven’s financial statements

this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2008.

Financial Highligl hts
° On a government-wide basis, the Town’s net assets decreased by $6,313,145 for the fiscal year. The most
significant reason for the decrease was due to non-capitalized capital project expenditures, lower revenues

than projected in the general fund, and increase in workers’ compensation claims and related liabilities.

e The Town’s net assets totaled $55,494,787 at June 30, 2008. Of this amount, $15,914,574 is available
(unrestricted) to finance ongoing programs.

. At year end the unreserved and undesignated fund balance for the general fund was $153,656 or .17% of
total general fund expenditures and transfers out.

. The Town’s total long-term debt decreased by $5,600,871, due to scheduled debt service payments.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of East Haven’s basic financial
statements. The Town of East Haven’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the Town of East Haven’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town’s net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this

statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The government-wide financial statements present only governmental activities whose functions are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues. The governmental activities of the Town include general
government, public safety, public works, culture and recreation, health and welfare, and education.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of East Haven uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of
the Town can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a Town’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the Town’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains 42 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances for the general fund, debt service fund, and capital improvements 2007 fund, which are considered to
be major funds. Data from the other 39 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements in Schedules 4 and 5 of this report.

The Town adopts an annual budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided
for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Proprietary funds. The Town maintains one type of proprietary fund. Internal service funds are an accounting
device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the Town’s various functions.

The Town uses internal service funds to account for its self-insured workers’ compensation, medical benefits
and other claims. These activities have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
Town. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of
those funds are not available to support the Town’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information. The combining statements and supplemental schedules referred to earlier in connection
with nonmajor governmental funds are presented immediately following the notes to basic financial statements.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a Town’s financial position. In the case
of the Town, assets exceeded liabilities by $55,494,787 at the close of the fiscal year.

TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT

NET ASSETS
Governmental Activities
2008 2007

Current and other assetS....cvovvereveeercreerneevinnenns $ 37,924,283 $ 45,923,322

Capital assets (Net).......cereervrrereererrenreresesnnensenns 92,250,259 92,271,530

TOtal ASSELS..civiirirrr e enaes 130,174,542 138,194,852

Current Labilities......occcvevvvvviiniieniveniinnreersveenens 22,715,049 18,527,551

Long-term liabilities.........ccovvrenrernrererenrerienennens 51,964,706 57,859,369

Total Habilities......cccovviviicceerireereresrer e 74,679,755 76,386,920
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.... 37,516,717 32,585,690

ReEStrCted..c.vvvvevriiereece s 2,063,496 2,293,639

Unrestricted.....oviveenevrenrecseevresenrsesseerseessnes. 15,914,574 26,928,603

TOTAL NET ASSETS....oovcivieriiriresinecineecnnens $ 55,494,787 $ 61,807,932

The largest portion of the Town’s net assets (67.6%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
construction in progress, land improvements, buildings, building improvements, machinery and equipment,
vehicles, and infrastructure); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The
Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the Town’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town’s net assets (3.7%) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets in the amount of
$15,914,574 may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Governmental activities. Already noted was the statement of activities’ purpose in presenting information in
how the Town’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. For the fiscal year, net assets decreased
$6,313,145. The most significant reason for the decrease is due to non-capitalized capital project expenditures,

lower revenues than projected in the general fund, and increase in workers’ compensation claims and related
liabilities.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Governmental Activities

2008 2007
REVENUES:
Program revenues:
Charges for services.........cooovvvveiernnnnnnn. $ 3,760,474 $ 4,507,678
Operating grants and contributions............. 33,285,847 23,416,379
Capital grants and contributions................ 462,595 560,949
General revenues: .
Property taXes. . ocveereriieerininirnreneenennennn 49,901,476 47,962,038
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs................ 1,203,035 1,442,446
Investment iNCOME........ooovvvirrviinniinnnnenns 407,672 1,217,950
Miscellaneous. ..o veriviriiri i enanens 68,023 48,256
TOTAL REVENUES......ccoviiiiviiiinveiennn, 89,089,122 79,155,696
EXPENSES:
General government..........ovveveereniereneanns 5,517,911 5,501,604
Public safety..........ccccooneeriinnin . 14,949,291 12,710,019
Public WorksS....ov v, 8,709,675 8,281,435
Culture and recreation.........vovevvevrreennernnss 2,506,521 2,389,974
Health and welfare........ccoovevvviiinniinnenn, 1,487,119 1,553,644
Bducation.....cooviviviiriiiiiieniinninirrnnnens 59,780,686 48,310,573
Interest eXpPense. .ooevrvirvrriveenreneraerinenerens 2,451,064 2,459,162
TOTAL EXPENSES......cviiiiivviiiiivierinnnnn, 95,402,267 81,206,411
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS... (6,313,145) (2,050,715)
NET ASSETS - JULY Tiiiiiiiiiiririneneens 61,807,932 63,858,647
NET ASSETS -JUNE 30.....cccovvvvviiiinennnnnns $ 55,494,787 $ 61,807,932

Governmental Activities - Revenues

The significant changes in revenues for governmental activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, were as
follows:

e Charges for services decreased $747,204 due substantially to a decrease in real estate transactions, and
therefore, related town clerk fees, and building permits.

e Operating grants and contributions increased $9,869,468 due to an increase in on-behalf payments for
teacher retirement benefits.

s Property taxes increased by $1,939,438 due to an increase in the tax levy to support operations.

¢ Investment income decreased by $810,278 due to the decrease in interest rates and less available cash to
invest.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Governmental Activities - Expenses

The significant changes in expenses for governmental activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, were as
follows:

o Public safety expenses increased by $2,239,272. This is due to increases in police overtime and the
allocation of employee benefits and related costs to the public safety function.

e Education expenses increased by $11,470,113 due to increases in salaries and benefits, and the on-behalf
amounts to the state teachers’ retirement fund, note above.

Financial Analysis of the Town’s Funds

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a Town’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The combined fund balances of governmental funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, is $1,786,603
including a reserve for endowments in the amount of $100,000. The unreserved and undesignated portion
consists of the general fund in the amount of $153,656, the special revenue funds of $838,546, the debt service
fund of $2,619,081, the capital projects funds of $(4,638,176), and the permanent funds of $1,963,496 for a total
of $936,603.

General Fund

The general fund is the operating fund of the Town. The fund balance of the general fund decreased by
$3,187,370 for the fiscal year. Revenues increased by $11,184,276, with tax revenues at $50,312,609. Charges
for services decreased by $251,549 and investment income decreased by $261,457. Intergovernmental revenues
increased by $9,489,943,

The total final budget was not amended from the original approved budget during the year. Significant changes
in the budget from the originally adopted amounts were as follows:

e Legal budget increased by $100,200 for expenses related to various ongoing litigation including Tweed
Airport.

o Police Department budget increased by $486,596 due to police overtime.

. General services decreased $793,418 due substantially to lower electricity rates and the transfer of
amounts from contingency to other accounts.

Debt Service Fund

The debt service fund’s net change in fund balance was a decrease of $434,681 for the fiscal year. This is a
result of debt service costs of the sewer bonds greater than investment income earned by the fund.

Capital Improvements 2007

This fund’s net change in fund balance was a decrease of $586,149 for the fiscal year. The fund balance of this
fund was $(1,697,825) due to expenditures incurred before the issuance of bonds to fund these projects.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

At June 30, 2008, the Town of East Haven’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities was
$92,250,259 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in
progress, land improvements, buildings, building improvements, machinery and equipment, vehicles and
infrastructure (roads, sidewalks and bridges). The net decrease in the Town’s investment in capital assets for the
current fiscal year was $21,271.

The most significant changes included the following:

. The completion of road reconstruction projects totaling $1,952,258.

e Various improvements related to the Main Street Development were completed.

- TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT

CAPITAL ASSETS - NET
Governmental Activities
2008 2007
Land.....coooiviiviiiniiiiiennnnn, $ 2,244,990 $ 2,244,990
Construction in progress......... 300,848 1,135,061
Land improvements............... 2,989,633 2,228,351
Buildings.......c.cocoveviinninnnne. 48,044,385 48,995,160
Building improvements........... 3,258,829 3,294,359
Machinery and equipment........ 3,197,176 3,410,807
Vehicles.....oooovviiiiininninnnnne. 2,101,442 2,084,541
Infrastructure...........ocvvnnen, 30,112,956 28,878,261
TOTAL..oovreeerreecerecresre e $ 92,250,259 $ 92,271,530

Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found in Note III.C.

Long-term Debt

For the year ended June 30, 2008, the Town’s long-term debt decreased by $5,600,871 due to scheduled
principal payments. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town had total bonded and loan debt outstanding
of $52,275,000. Of this amount, $14,950,966 will be funded from state grants resulting in net outstanding debt
in the amount of $37,324,034, which is backed by the full faith and credit of the Town of East Haven.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Long-term Debt (Continued)

TOWN OF EAST HAVEN
OUTSTANDING LONG-TERM DEBT
Governmental
Activities
2008 2007
General purpose bonds $ 19,738,620 $ 21,561,558
School bonds 29,656,380 33,143,442
Sewer 2,880,000 3,240,000
Total $ 52275000 $ 57,945,000

The Town maintains an “A3” rating from Moody’s and an “A” from Standard and Poor’s for general obligation
debt.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 2 % to 4 /4 times
total tax collections including interest and lien fees and the tax relief for the elderly freeze grant. The current
debt limitation for the Town is $352,517,375, which is significantly in excess of the Town’s outstanding general
obligation debt.

Additional information on the Town’s long-term debt can be found in Note IILF.

Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

Town officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2009 budget. The Town decided that it was
important to continue the support of the school system and adopt a budget designed to promote long-term fiscal
stability. In order to meet the objectives of the budget, the Town recognized the need to continue its pattern of
conservative budgeting while at the same time providing excellent services to its residents and taxpayers.

The 2009 general fund budget was $81,190,601, an increase of 1.96% over the prior year. There was a minimal
increase in non-tax revenue over the 2008 budget of $1,702,984.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to familiarize the Town’s citizens, taxpayers and customers with the Town’s
finances and to demonstrate the Town’s fiscal accountability for its operation. Questions concerning this report,
or request for additional financial information, should be directed to Mr. Paul S. Rizza, Director of Finance,
Town of East Haven, 250 Main Street, East Haven, Connecticut 06512.
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008

EXHIBIT A
(1 of2)

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

Current assets:

Investments..........occeverernnns

Receivables:

ASSETS

Property taXeS....oocov i i e e e e e e e
Intergovernmental.........c.coocoeeincniennneen e
OtRET.... it sossresstsars e s o0 .
(01111 S TPV ST UTE TP RPPPPRIR

Total CUITENT BSSEIS...0uviriereirecrsrenreeereesreresseesresesserersssseressns see ses

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:

Temporarily restricted:

(071 | T R O U UU PSR SO PTPTIN
INVESIMENLS. .. oot ceeverire e vee v ereee cerree vt rre st crr s resee see vre aancen oe

Permanently restricted:

INVESHMIEITS. .. o0t ves vescer it vee see eesers eee veeens v ner seesnevrnie

Total restricted 8SSeL5....v.eevirtviuvieire vt iesvercee eeeeeeveenn e

Receivables (net):

PIOPEILY TAXES. . cvvveeviiinnies i e vee s cre ves e vee ss ree ees renree ces nes

Intergovernmental..

Total receivables (NEt).......c.ovevveevvivnr e v veevee e ver e rve oo

Other noncurrent assets... ..

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Land.......coocivnnie

Construction il PIOBTESS... ... vvvvvrvrevrscvnvrsresnscrevesen vve senvne oas
Land improvements... ... oo vevve evrvveveevonvee snnvneve souvreevs souven aes
Building improvements... ... ..o oo e venceecvevreee seneeas

Machinery and equipment...................c..
VeEhiCleS. . vvvvve i en v cvee et vee e e

INFrastTUCTUIe. .. ..ot ivt i e it e et et it s vre eeeeee sreeee

Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)..............ceeevevveee

Total NONCUITENt @5SE1S.......eeviviir ittt veeves cev e vrrnrrerrseesee s

TOTAL ASSETS...oviiriinisinces e nseseee e s v .

$ 2,918,585
11,761,783

1,037,038
2,745,871
545,757
38,787

19,047,821

27,790
1,935,706

100,000

2,063,496

1,309,461
15,471,844

16,781,305

31,661

2,244,990
300,848
2,989,633
48,044,385
3,258,829
3,197,176
2,101,442
30,112,956

92,250,259

111,126,721

130,174,542

(Continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT A

(20f2)
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008
GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES
LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable... $ 6,449,240
Accrued payroll............. 4,335,076
Accrued interest payable... 725,865
Unearmned TEVEIMUE. ......uv.verirerieeermnsoreesesmrrsesssensssssessussessens sss sos sos 594,518
Bond anticipation notes 2,875,000
Bonds and notes payable..........ccccerreniniinnnns 5,945,000
Compensated absences...........oervree. 1,528,350
Capital leases payable..........covimennn e 262,000
Total current Habilites. . ... o voevee i iee i e v cee e e 22,715,049
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds, notes and related labilities... ..o oo veviev i s 45,756,461
Compensated absences.............co.covee e, 6,113,401
Landfill closure and postclosure care............coe v ivven i ven e 94,844
Total noncurrent Habilities... ... ... v iveveiiiiin e e v e vee e 51,964,706
TOTAL LIABILITIES .. ..ottt et e eev i vre ven vre vae neeees 74,679,755
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.............covevviiiinniees 37,516,717
Restricted for:
Endowments:
Nonexpendable..........coeviee it 100,000
EXpendable..........c. v ivnirrirniiiiiscne s e rerven ven e s sre serenn e 1,963,496
UNEESITICIEU. .. v e vee s viver vrevesver et i ves erssrs sre see vrevnnsasersers aee e 15,914,574
TOTALNET ASSETS ... e e e e e e 5 55,494,787
(Concluded)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C
(20of2)

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES
TO NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2008

AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (EXHIBIT A) ARE
DIFFERENT FROM THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET. THE DETAILS OF THIS DIFFERENCE ARE AS
FOLLOWS:

TOTAL FUND BALANCES (EXHIBIT C, PAGE 1)... ... i ti it it s e s s st e s st e in v e 3 1,786,603

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ARE NOT FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND, THEREFORE, ARE NOT REPORTED IN THE FUNDS:

Beginning Net CAPIAl BSSEES... ... 1.u.ut vt ti it e e e et et et e e e e s e e e s e e s e e e e e e s 92,271,530
Capital assets addItIONS... ... ....eo it e e e e 2,460,821
DEPTrECiBtiON BXPEIISE. .. .0 vve ve e et ver tee trt s re cre rre cee sesses ss b hs os he st s sa as aes te et e re he bheses sae e rn ben re (2,482,092)

OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS ARE NOT AVAILABLE TO PAY FOR CURRENT PERIOD
EXPENDITURES AND, THEREFORE, ARE DEFERRED IN THE FUNDS:

School building grant reCeiVabIe... ........c oot ier ittt e it e e e e e e e e 17,835,464
Property tax interest and lien accrual..........covevevvee e e 1,562,443
Property tax receivable - accrual basis change................ 1,905,933
Allowance for doubtful accounts...............coeeeevenvee s (1,400,000)
OB @SSELS. .1 vs vevvvn vee ver st tes ven s vee tat s vee ves ae eee s ves stnere sae oo ees besaee aeh arn ees eee tan e eee neeee eau eain nes tan s aen 31,661

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS ARE USED BY MANAGEMENT TO CHARGE THE COST OF
MEDICAL INSURANCE BENEFITS TO INDIVIDUAL DEPARTMENTS:

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the
SEAtEMENE OF NMBL BSSES. .. ...t ettt vt e e cn e e it e se et et bt san e ae b e ta e e e s e e sea e e bk bes e s e 1,948,345

SOME LIABILITIES, INCLUDING BONDS PAYABLE, ARE NOT DUE AND PAYABLE IN THE
CURRENT PERIOD AND, THEREFORE, ARE NOT REPORTED IN THE FUNDS:

Bonds and notes Payable. .. ... ... ..c e iee o i e e et es e e e e e s e e e e e e e (52,275,000)
Deferred charge on refunding.. 573,539
Compensated absences... ... (7,641,751)
Capital leases............coccevvniieeiiiee e (262,000)
Landfill closure and postclosure care... ... .. e s (94,844)
Accrued interest payable... ... ..o (725,865)

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES... ... ... oo cs vttt it i st i et e e s e vt e sens $ 55,494,787

(Concluded)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

EXHIBIT E
(1of2)

AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
(EXHIBIT B) ARE DUE TO:

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (EXHIBIT D).......coovvmmmmnicnnne

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities the cost
of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period:

L0 LT O S P TR
DIEPIECIAtION EXPENSE. .. ..t tvutvsee vt ere et ves conree eennus ses st oo rhesesms tesbn eee srt bos ees bes sen sae se an e pn bee sen e e

1 O U O O O SO e

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported
as revenues in the funds:

School building grant receipts. ..
Change in property tax recewable accrual ba51s change
Change in property tax interest and lien revenue..

| O U U PP PR

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect
of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. The details of these differences in the treatment of
long-term debt and related items are as follows:

Debt issued or incurred:
Other...
Principal repayments

General OblIZAtION DOMAS. .. ... vriverecatat et s s at s s e et as by et ses ses es ae es e be be ee as s ey bs s s s s e
CAPIAL LBASE. ... 1.vves er vt e ces ees st it et et e p s e e e e e e e e e et bee eee e bt ran aee sa st e aerene ene e
TOLAL ..ot is oo cvnn s re as e s e s st s s s e e s s naa s s s e e an s e Rs s s s s s e e e e aee aee nea s

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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3 7,095,296

2,460,821
(2,482,092)

(21,271)

(2,372,654)
(21,275)
(389,858)

(2,783,787)

33,327

5,670,000
246,508

5,949,835

(Continued)



EXHIBIT E

(20of2)
JOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

COMPENSALEd BDSEIICES. .. .1t vt vet vt e eee eee ves it vee eee tersat s ees eee set vbe e ere see abs s aee san bnaee ree ee e nee rae venn s 5 (304,010)
ACCTUEd INLEIESE PAYADIE. .. ..\ cvv vt ot et it et et ce st et e et e vt bt are tr e et s sas s s s s e nenae rn ses tas eae tne ven e 11,276
Amortization of deferred ChHarges...... ..o vvviveiieiie i e e e e e ere e . (69,129)

OIIBE et e o e et e et e e et e e e e (1,666)

TOtAl Lo e e s e e e e e e s e ey e e b (363,529)

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge costs of medical insurance benefits to individual
QEPATHNIEIS. .. o.e vvevreereteeers vt vrevee eevre vrevesersvesereveeberseraessesaesersereeneere ens oneenertvassonsrneeesenserssessnssneenereres

(2,058,278)

The net revenue of the activities of the Internal Service Fund is reported with governmental activities....................... 59,181

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (EXHIBIT B) ..o, $ (6,313,145)

(Concluded)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

EXHIBITF

VARIANCE
WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
REVENUES:
PrOPEILY tAXES.1evuveerrirereererrissermresevensnesersrvsersossessrarsassessorens $§ 51,624,881 $ 51,624,881 $ 50,312,609 $(1,312,272)
IntergovernmMental... ..o ivecveevierererrereereseeserrreseses e sresresevrscsssevsssrssssseas 24,059,965 24,059,965 22,602,666 (1,457,299)
INVESHNENT INCOIMIE. vvuvnerrerenreeriavireerienerersererrrenserensnseranensnees 625,000 625,000 393,890 (231,110)
Charges for services......cvueevreret 2,532,539 2,532,539 2,103,998 (428,541)
OUNET e rcrervecenrenreresrerresrarrsessessnsivesssserssssssssassrsasssssressessss s s snasnsnnsas 154,609 154,609 39,663 (114,946)
TOTAL REVENUES 78,996,994 78,996,994 75,452,826 (3,544,168)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government............o.u.. rererrerenenaeaens 2,225,139 2,426,617 2,312,421 114,196
PUDBIC SATELY...cvvererrevrereririireerrennsessenesessssnsersesserasssssesseersrnssvasses 9,179,523 9,711,519 9,668,608 42,911
Highways and engineering.... reveeesreeeereressaessarssbeerresrseseras 2,203,584 2,203,584 2,177,396 26,188
Sanitation and MAaINENANCE.......vevvererrreerirrinrvsreriresssessssseressesesssses 3,150,642 3,200,142 2,998,019 202,123
Health and welfare................ 978,398 978,398 924,737 53,661
Culture and rECrEatiON....vveirreveerecierersriesresresrersrisessssessssarsesnsressersons 1,302,143 1,301,143 1,240,384 60,759
Employee benefits and insurance 7,269,138 7,189,638 6,866,143 323,495
Education........ceveeenns 42,352,612 42,352,612 42,352,612 -
2,792,500 1,999,082 1,865,617 133,465
7,479,291 7,570,235 7,570,235 -
78,932,970 78,932,970 77,976,172 956,798
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES... 64,024 64,024 (2,523,346) (2,587,370)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Appropriation of fund balance..........covecrenees 600,000 600,000 - (600,000)
Transfers OUb.....vvvivvseniirneriire et ir s reeer e reeaerrernenrananes (664,024) (664,024) (664,024) -
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).....cccovvvrereeenernrsesnnnns (64,024) (64,024) (664,024) (600,000)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE.....cicvivviiirirvererriienneinanenn: 3 - $ - (3,187,370) $ (3,187,370)

FUND BALANCE - JULY 1, 2007..............

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2008

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT

EXHIBIT G

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
ASSETS
07 1] 1 OO PORPRRSPRRON 1,260,671
INVESMENLS. . ueiieiiiiieeirreresiseererrreserereessrrrrerersrteeeeasbtesesessseaeessusnessrsnenasssnnens 5,432,424
AcCOUNTS TECEIVADIB.....oei it s e s et rve s re e rans 52,364
Due from other fUNdS........ooovveeiviiiiireceee e s srreesrre e s s essesaee 443,888
TOTAL ASSETS..eeeeeerieecirsrrebiee st cseseesesbesssesssvessnsesssesesessseeseasvenesssasses 7,189,347
LIABILITIES
Claims and judgments payable.........c.cccovirierninnncnncnno, 3,747,037
DUE 10 Other fUNAS....uvverieeir et s vserearerere s s e s s s bassanrsseseesnsrarensensas 1,493,965
TOTAL LIABILITIES......oo oot ccerriieneesresiensnesseresseesnesseessreessessnesnsessasens 5,241,002
NET ASSETS
UNTESITICIEA. cviviirirereeiinrerererirrerreessteesosierteeossbanseeessrsnesessrnsasevarsusnssinsaessensnns 1,948,345

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT H

TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges fOr SEIVICES......cevriririmimiiissinsee s $ 11,548,042
OPERATING EXPENSES:

ClAIINIS e vveeerereeeereessssseesesoseessesssesssesssessasesabessssesnsensesastassnsensesssnessessresanssne 12,365,665

AdMINISIEALION. .ceiiecr v iiree s cerrre s ssreresesrsstesesssnneessessresseabensssssrnssrsrasssns 1,240,655
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES.....ciccceireiieevrirerseresreressssssssrassseseesssssssonss 13,606,320
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS). e vveiiviiininiiiiiineniininissnsansnenananes (2,058,278)
NONOPERATING REVENUES: :

INVESHMENT INCOIMIE. .t vivrtet i iiririteer e rrerreeeeerrressiseserere s sssrnareseessssanes 59,181
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS . .ot oceriesercrersersnsersirersnessssessesersseressssssssssssonns (1,999,097)
NET ASSETS = JULY 1, 2007 1t ineiriiveinrnninnreeneraesarenesneiaseneinins 3,947,442
NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2008, ....0eiritineieireiirieianneaenenenieniieansenas $ 1,948,345

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

EXHIBIT I

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Premitums reCEIVEA. . ettt it
Payments 10 VENAOTS. . .uvuieeneeri it et e e a s e era s e neas
Payments for Claims........covvviiiiiiiiiiiiii

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES..................cee.

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

TNCOME fTOM INVESIMEIIES . o v vs vt iieeriittesensrsanreaneerenneenaerrnersansanateneessontssonass
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS..................
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JULY 1,2007.....ccivveniininiiiiniiiinceeen

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JUNE 30, 2008.........ccooviiiiiiiniieniiininennnns

RECONCILIATION TO BALANCE SHEET CASH:

Cash and cash equivalents per above...........cocovveiiiiiiviniinininini
Cash and cash equivalents reported as investments. ........cocoveviviviviniicniiiicno,

BALANCE SHEET CASH.....ooiiiiiiiii i

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating inCOme (1088). v vvnererereririiii i e

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in:

ACCOUNTS TECEIVADIE. v vnvtiririiriiit it st renrsereessnsernerranerrnrrereeenarerrans
Due from other fUNdS. ....vviviiii i v v v i e s as e rae e

Increase (decrease) in:

Claims and judgments payable..........oovuveverenrneiinirirrrrerrreeraraenenenenensn
Dueto other funds........o.oviiiiiiiiiii

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 13,327,091
(1,240,655)
(11,451,828)

634,608

59,181

693,789

5,999,306

$ 6,693,095

$ 6,693,095
(5,432,424)

$ 1,260,671

$  (2,058,278)

(11,303)
908,828

913,837
881,524

$ 634,608




EXHIBIT J
TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
AGENCY
FUNDS
ASSETS
O | VOO OO OO PP $ 148,161
INVESLITIEIES. ..vveevireircre e erereree s e s sreesrresra e s e s e s s s ee e esbeesasssatesbsebssobesabe st asasasennnores 43,539
TOTAL ASSETS.....ooiitictireireresenserenseseensinseetsresssesestissssessssessss s s s s v sa sansnsssssns 5 191,700
LIABILITY

LIABILITY:

ACCOUNES PAYADIL....cveviiirieiereierieeerisreteeserei e s e e e e e $ 191,700

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

23



EXHIBIT K
TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION

The Town of East Haven, Connecticut (the "Town") was incorporated in May 1785. The Town covers 89 square
miles, and is located 77 miles east of New York City. The Town operates under a Mayor-Council form of
government and the Town Charter as amended on November 7, 1978. The Town provides a full range of services
as authorized by its charter including public safety, (police and fire) public works, sanitation, health and social
services, culture and recreation, education, planning, zoning and general administrative services to its residents.

L  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes
in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities are
normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and fiduciary funds, even though the
latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental

funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
Jocus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the fiduciary fund financial statements. Agency funds
do not have a measurement focus but are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
Jfocus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the

. current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
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EXHIBIT K
TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) |

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Property taxes, reimbursement type grants, certain intergovernmental revenues, transfers, and interest
associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable
due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the Town.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for resources used to pay off the WPCA bonds.

The Capital Improvements 2007 Fund is used to account for resources to be used for capital
expenditures.

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types:

The Internal Service Funds account for risk activities for insurance benefits as allowed by GASB
Statement No. 10 and for management services provided to other departments or agencies of the
government, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Agency Funds account for monies held on behalf of students and employees and amounts held
for performance related activities.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent that those standards
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this rule are payments and other charges between certain Town
functions. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported
for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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EXHIBIT K

TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the Town’s internal service fund are charges to customers for medical insurance benefits, workers’
compensation claims and property insurance deductibles. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund
and the internal service fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

Deposits - The Town considers cash equivalents as cash on hand, demand deposits, money market
accounts and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Investments - Eligible investments are governed by State of Connecticut Statutes which, in
general, allow the Town to invest in obligations of the United States of America or United States
government sponsored corporations, in shares or other interests in any custodial arrangement,
pool, or no-load, open-end management type investment company or investment trust (as
defined), in obligations of any State or political subdivision rated within the top two rating
categories of any nationally recognized rating service, or in obligations of the State of
Connecticut or political subdivision rated within the top three rating categories of any nationally
‘recognized rating service. For the capital nonrecurring fund, not more than 31% can be invested
in equity securities. Investment income is recorded in the fund in which it was earned.

Investments for the Town are reported at fair value. State Treasurers Investment Fund is an
investment pool managed by the State of Connecticut Office of the State Treasurer. Investments
must be made in instruments authorized by Connecticut General Statutes 3-27a - 3-27c. Investment
guidelines are adapted by the State Treasurer. The fair value of the position in the pool is the same
as the value of the pool shares.

2. Receivables and Payables

a. Interfunds

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of
interfund loans).
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EXHIBIT K

TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

2.

3.

4.

Receivables and Payables (Continued)

b. Property Taxes and Other Receivables

In the government-wide financial statements, all trade, property tax, sewer use, and sewer
assessment receivable are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Allowance percentages
range from 18 to 64% of outstanding receivable balances, and are calculated based upon prior
collection history.

In the fund financial statements, all property taxes receivable, which have not been collected
within 60 days of June 30, have been recorded as unearned revenue, since they are not
considered to be available to finance expenditures of the current fiscal year. Taxes collected
during the 60-day period have been recorded as revenue.

Property taxes are assessed on property as of October 1. Taxes are billed in the following
July and are due in two installments, July 1 and the following January 1. Liens are effective
on the assessment date and are continued by filing before the end of the fiscal year following
the due date.

Restricted Assets

The restricted assets for the Town are restricted for endowment purposes. The Town has several
bequests that restrict expenditures to investment income and only for the donor-designated

purpose.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in
the applicable governmental columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets
are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $4,000, and an
estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the Town are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 10-75
Building improvements 50
Land improvements 25
Roads 80
Bridges 50
Vehicles 10-20
Equipment 5-40
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EXHIBIT K
TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

5. Compensated Absences

Employees are paid by a prescribed formula for absence due to vacation and sickness based upon
the various union contracts and the Town’s personnel policies. The eligibility for vacation pay, and
in some instances sick pay, does vest and can be paid upon death, retirement or termination, up to
certain limits.

6. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities statement of net assets. Bond
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the
term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

7. Fund Equity and Net Assets

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are
subject to change.

In the government-wide financial statements, net assets are classified into the following categories:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

This category presents the net assets that reflect capital assets net of only the debt applicable to
the acquisition or construction of these assets. Debt issued for non-capital purpose is excluded.

Restricted Net Assets

This category presents the net assets restricted by external parties (creditors, grantors,
contributors or laws and regulations).

Unrestricted Net Assets

This category presents the net assets of the Town which are not restricted.
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EXHIBIT K

TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

8. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities including disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities and reported revenues, expenses and expenditures during the fiscal year.

9. Comparative Data/Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent
with the current year’s presentation.

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Town adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data included in the
General Fund financial statements.

o  Prior to March 4, the Mayor submits to the Board of Finance a proposed operating budget for the
year commencing the following July 1. The Board of Finance returns the budget to the Mayor with
its recommendations by March 23. On or before March 31, the Mayor submits the budget to the
Town Council, which calls a public hearing. By April 28, the Town Council votes to adopt the
budget. The budget is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

e The Director of Finance may make transfers within a department of amounts not to exceed $2,500
in any one account in any one year. The Board of Finance is authorized to transfer budgeted
amounts within and between departments for amounts up to $25,000. The Town Council, upon
recommendation of the Board of Finance, approves transfers in excess of $25,000 but not to exceed
$50,000. Transfers in excess of $50,000 may be authorized only by ordinance. Additional
appropriations may be made by ordinance of the Town Council. There were no additional
appropriations during the year.

e Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year.

o The legal level of control (the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is
at the department level.

e Budgeted amounts shown are as originally adopted, or as amended by the Town Council during the
course of the year.

e The Board of Education is authorized under State law to make any transfers required within their

budget at their discretion. Any additional appropriations must have Board of Education and Town
Council approval.
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EXHIBIT K

TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

A.

D.

Budgets and Budgeta;_y Accounting (Continued)

Encumbrances are recognized as a valid and proper charge against a budget appropriation in the year in
which the purchase order, contract or other commitment is issued and, accordingly, encumbrances
outstanding at year end are reported in budgetary reports (Exhibit F) as expenditures in the current year.
Generally, all unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end, except those for the Capital Projects
Funds. Appropriations for capital projects are continued until completion of applicable projects, even
when projects extend more than one fiscal year.

Budget - GAAP Reconciliation

A reconciliation of revenues, expenditures, and fund balance between the accounting treatment required
by GAAP (Exhibit D), and budgetary requirements (Exhibit F), is as follows:

REVENUES EXPENDITURES

BALANCE, BUDGETARY BASIS, EXHIBIT F -
JUNE 30, 2008......coonvirireersiiriisnsiensesennsssssssassesssnsssanses $ 75,452,826 $ 77,976,172

State Teachers’ Retirement on-behalf payment ............... 10,439,512 10,439.512

BALANCE, GAAP BASIS, EXHIBIT D -
JUNE 30, 2008.......cocnrriirincismrnenenesenessnnsesesnesessananes 5.892.338 88,415,684

Donor Restricted Endowments

The Town has received certain endowments for the Hagaman Memorial Library. The amounts are
reflected in net assets as restricted for endowments. Investment income (including appreciation) is
approved for expenditure by the individual Board of the benefiting activities. At June 30, 2008, the
amount of appreciation (depreciation) included in unreserved undesignated fund balance for the
Hagaman Memorial Library was $(14,923).

Deficit Fund Equity
The following funds had deficit fund equity at June 30, 2008:

Economic Development.........ucueeeurecnsesnrrinsmsesesensescssesens $ 34,068
DOZ LICENSES ..uvuverrreeererercmricncnsisiisensiessessssiassesssssssensaess 398
Capital Improvements 2006..........ccouvrrereirererninnsreesersnnnans 324,403
Capital Improvements 2008.........cccoovivervienennnecsnrensensienns 1,308,548
Road Bonding 2008.........cccocovvrimierensmnniiieinnesnssiseennnes 771,140
Capital Improvements Revaluation and Engineering....... 224,531
Capital Improvements 1998..........covnrvevrvnnnnnccnniienee 1,392
CDB Revitalization Construction Phase I.........cocecceinnn 1,000,000
Workers’ Compensation Fund..........covveevvvieninrenneccnnnes 1,622,389
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EXHIBIT K
TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

D. Deficit Fund Balances (Continued)

The deficits in the Economic Development fund and Dog Licenses fund will be funded with future
revenues. The deficits in the Capital Improvement funds, Road Bonding fund and the CDB
Revitalization Construction Phase II will be eliminated when bonds are issued. The deficit in the
Workers’ Compensation fund will be funded with general fund appropriations.

III. DETAILED NOTES

A. Cash and Investments

1. Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure,
the Town’s deposits may not .be returned to it. The Town does not have a deposit policy for
custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2008, $10,616,299 of the Town’s bank balance of $11,439,755,
including certificates of deposits and money market accounts, was exposed to custodial credit risk as

follows:
Uninsured and uncollateralized........co.eovcreerververnscerereennrennns $ 9,524,669
Uninsured and collateral held by the pledging bank’s
trust department, not in the Town’s name...........cceverrrrnnee _1.091.630
Total amount subject to custodial credit risk ......ccccvururneee. $10.616.299
2. At June 30, 2008, the Town's investments (including restricted investments) consisted of the
following:
 INVESTMENT MATURITIES (IN YEARS)
TYPE OF FAIR LESS 1-5 5-10 OVER
INVESTMENT VALUE N/A THAN 1 YEARS YEARS 10
Mutual funds:
Money market mutual funds ....... $ 409,333 $ $ 409,333 § $ $
Equity mutual funds ......ccovvvcenn 125,509 125,509
Corporate bond mutual funds...... 37,821 24,263 13,558
Government bond mutual funds.. 382,592 139,932 242,660
Certificates of deposit......evriverivnees 2,821,470 784,358 1,269,804 767,308
Bank money market funds.............. 3,806,795 3,806,795
U.S. Treasury notes ......coevvrerenenenes 528,543 53,933 279,783 194,827
Pooled fixed INCOME...cocerrvreereereneens 3,753,596 3,753,596
Corporate bonds ............. 21,661 21,661
Government bonds 548,702 131,638 417,064
Equities 1.405.006 1.405.006
TOTAL . $13841.028 $ 1.530.515 $ 8.808.015 % 1.867.081 $ 1218353 § 417,064

Of the $3,753,596 of pooled fixed income, $1,542,046 was invested in Short Term Investment Fund
(STIF). STIF is an investment pool managed by the State of Connecticut Office of the State
Treasurer. The balance was invested in a 2a-7 like pool.

Interest rate risk - The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates.
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EXHIBIT K

TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

III. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

A. Cash and Investments (Continued)

Credit risk - The Town has no investment policy that would limit its investment choices due to
credit risk other than State Statutes governing investments in obligations of any State or political
subdivision or in obligations of the State of Connecticut or political subdivision.

The Town’s investments subject to credit risk have average ratings by Standard & Poor’s as follows:

MONEY CORPORATE GOVERNMENT

MARKET BOND BOND POOLED

MUTUAL MUTUAL MUTUAL FIXED CORPORATE GOVERNMENT
AVERAGE RATING FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS INCOME BONDS BONDS
AAA s 3 81,396 5 3 $ 3,753,596 5 $ 131,638
AA e 17,414 - 382,592
532 O 20,407
| 5 SO 21,661
Unrated ....oooeureneirnsines 327.937 417.064
LG 1 VX DR—— $ 409333 $ 37.821 $ 382592 $_3.753.596 $ 21,661 $ 548702

Custodial credit risk - The Town has no formal policy regarding custodial credit risk. Custodial
credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Town will not be able to
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside

party.

AMOUNT
LESS SUBJECT TO
INSURED CUSTODIAL
TOTAL AMOUNTS CREDIT RISK
US TIeasury NOES ..c.veeerecsersecmeeerercaresceresssnes $ 528,543 $ 528,543 $
Corporate bonds ..o 21,661 21,661
Government bonds ........ccceeerneernnreerenreesiieeenne . 548,702 548,702
EQUITIES 1uvvvvecversreecsneessenenssensssensrermsssissasisssssnes 1,405,006 1,158.860 246.146
TOLALS co.vvererereseresreereesnnrereressesesanassesssnenssnene $ 2503912 $ 2257766 $§ 246,146

B. Receivables

Receivables as of year end for the Town’s government-wide financial statements by type, including the
applicable allowances for uncollectibles, are as follows:

PROPERTY TAXES
INTEREST
TAXES & LIEN F_EES TOTAL
Current POrtion ....eeveeeeereceveeneresrerserenes $ 939,144 $ 97.894 $ 1037038
Long-term Portion .....ccccovvvverenireenennnanes $ 1,244,912 $ 1,464,549 $ 2,709,461
Less Allowance for Uncollectibles......... ( 400,000) (_1.000,000) (_1,400,000)
Net Long-term Portion........coecorermrisirenens $ 844,912 $  464.549 $ 1309461

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end
of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported in
the governmental funds were as follows: '
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EXHIBIT K
TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IIl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

B. Receivables (Continued)

DEFERRED REVENUE:

Delinquent property taxes receivable (general fund)......cccoovvcriinnvcvinneennnns $ 1,905,933
UNEARNED REVENUE:

Advance taX COLIECTIONS......vvururrrerrerrerrreererresererssesesessessessessessessssessonssinssssssssesasse 580,242

Grant drawdowns prior to meeting all eligibility requirements..........ocevruevenn. 14,276
TOTAL DEFERRED AND UNEARNED REVENUE FOR

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS .....oonniirennineeniescssismssessssssisseressssssenns $ 2.500451

C. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1.2007 __INCREASES DECREASES JUNE 30, 2008

Capital Assets. not Being Depreciated:

Land $ 224499 § $ $ 2,244,990
Construction in progress 1.135.061 112,588 946.801 300,848
Total Capital Assets, not Being Depreciated................ 3.380.051 112.588 946.801 2,545,838

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:

Land improvements 2,938,893 908,857 3,847,750
Buildings 62,484,212 27,045 62,511,257
Building improvements 4,345,080 88,796 4,433,876
Machinery and equipment 5,132,791 144,208 5,276,999
Vehicles 2,613,059 173,870 2,786,929
Infrastructure 34,547,063 1.952,258 36.499.321
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated........evvsrvcunene 112,061.098 3.295.034 - 115.356.132
Total Capital Assets 115.441.149 3.407.622 946.801 117.901.970

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Land improvements 710,542 147,575 858,117
Buildings 13,489,052 977,820 14,466,872
Building improvements 1,050,721 124,326 1,175,047
Machinery and equipment 1,721,984 357,839 2,079,823
Vehicles 528,518 156,969 685,487
Infrastructure 5.668.802 717.563 6.386.365
Total Accumulated Depreciation 23.169.619 2,482,092 - 25.651.711
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, net............... 88.891.479 812.942 - 89.704.421
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net............... $ 92271530 $ 925.530 _$ 946,801 $ 92250259
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TOWN .OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EXHIBIT K

III. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

C. Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Town as follows:

Governmental Activities:
GENETAl GOVEITHNEII «..evvveveeeveecereereseeseeresceaceesnisesssrsssessensssssses et sssss s ssessssssmsnsessssts $ 39,248
PUDIC SATELY ...vevreerereiereererirrrieennesesesesesesessesesessmssstsssssessssanssssssssssssssssssssasassens 274,256
PUDBLC WOIKS...uevereeeceecietrericecnrenesenninsctressessanssessssesnns 852,300
Culture and recreation 62,896
Health and welfare .. 2,829
EUCAIION ...evveeeveerereeeereesereresesesnaesensssssnssssentatssssensatseesessassasssesesnssarsssssessssassssassesssassssens 1,250.563
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental ACtIVItiEs ......ovivinnnccnenice e $2.482.092
Construction Commitments
At June 30, 2008, the Town had no construction commitments.
D. Interfund Accounts
1. Interfund Payables and Receivables
A summary of interfund balances as of June 30, 2008 is as follows:
CORRESPONDING
FUND DUE FROM DUETO
MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND:
Debt service N/A $ 20,040 $
Capital improvements 2007 N/A 541,191
Public safety N/A 6,007 15,216
Historical documents preservation N/A 57,088
Economic Development N/A 3,445
Town pool repair NA 671
Open space N/A 45,000
Marine enforcement grants N/A 36,431
Public works state aid N/A 2,736
Permanent patch fund. N/A 671
East Haven kennel club N/A 7,199
Small Cities N/A 400 400
Dog licenses N/A 14,312
Michael Street playground N/A 7,762
Health and welfare N/A 44,700
Land acquisition N/A 54,306
Emergency management fund N/A 24,492
Capital improvements 1999 N/A 13,220
Capital improvements 2004 N/A 258,013
Capital improvements 2005 N/A 104,919
Capital improvements 2006 N/A 151,185
Capital improvements 2008 N/A 181,181
Road Bonding 2008 N/A 770,160
Capital improvements revaluation and engineering............. N/A 25,469
Capital improvements 1998........ N/A 1,392
LoCre N/A 57,443
CDB Revitalization construction phase IL.......ccoceevincernnes N/A 1,000,000



TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EXHIBIT K

IIl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

D.

Interfund Accounts (Continued)

1. Interfund Payables and Receivables (Continued)

MAJOR FUNDS: (Continued)

TOTAL GENERAL FUND

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 2007

147 Cosey Beach Avenue purchase
LOCIP town clerk fees

Self insurance reserve

Workers’ compensation

Medical insurance

DEBT SERVICE FUND:

WPCA debt service fund

NONMAJOR FUNDS:

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:

Public safety
Historical documents preservation

Economic Development

Town pool repair

Open space
Marine enforcement grants

Public works state aid

Permanent patch fund

East Haven kennel club

Small Cities

Dog licenses

Michael Street playground

Health and welfare

Land acquisition

Emergency management fund

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

CAPITAL PROJECTS:

Capital improvements 1999

Capital improvements 2004

Capital improvements 2005
Capital improvements 2006

Capital improvements 2008

Road Bonding 2008

Capital improvements revaluation and engineering.............

Capital improvements 1998

LOCIP

CDB Revitalization construction phase IL........cecvveucevinene

147 Cosey Beach Avenue purchase
LOCIP town clerk fees

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS.....cocovieerrrrrnnnen.

TOTAL NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ..............

CORRESPONDING

FUND

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund

General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund

DUE FROM DUETO
193,879
64,832
43,966
1,449,999
443,888
4.022.098 1,619,515
20.040
341.191
15,216 6,007
57,088
3,445
671
45,000
36,431
2,736
671
7,199
400 400
14,312
7,762
44,700
54,306
24.492
306,667 14.169
13,220
258,013
104,919
151,185
181,181
770,160
25,469
1,392
57,443
1,000,000
193,879
64.832
868.960 1.952.733
1,175,627 1,966,902




TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EXHIBIT K

IIl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)
D. Interfund Accounts (Continued)

1. Interfund Payables and Receivables (Continued)

CORRESPONDING
FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS:
Self INSUTANCE TESEIVE ...evecvievvrrerrcrrerveesaneessssessenssssvesssssssens General Fund
Workers’ compensation General Fund
Medical insurance General Fund

TOTAL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS.....cccoevunirinrnrernnens

DUE FROM DUETO
$ $ 43,966
1,449,999

443,888
443,888 1.493.965
$ _ 5.641.613 $ 5641613

All interfund balances result from the time lag between the debt payments occurred between funds

for short-term internal financing.

2. Interfund Transfers

A summary of interfund transfers as of June 30, 2008 is as follows:

CORRESPONDING TRANSFERS TRANSFERS
FUND IN our
MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND:
Hagaman Memorial Library N/A $ $ 664,024
NONMAIJOR FUNDS:
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:
Hagaman Memorial Library General Fund 664.024
GRAND TOTAL $ 664,024 3 664,024

Transfers are used to account for the financing by the general fund of various program and activities

in other funds.

E. Short-Term Obligations - Bond Anticipation Notes

The Town uses bond anticipation notes during the construction period of various public projects prior

to the issuance of the bonds at the completion of the project.

Short-term obligation activity for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

BALANCE BALANCE

JULY 1.2007 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS ___JUNE 30. 2008
BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES:
Capital Improvements 2006 .......c.cocovcviveennnne $ 475,000 $ 475,000 $ 475,000 $ 475,000
Capital Improvements Revaluation............... 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000
Capital Improvements 2007 ......couveeremnererenns 1,150,000 1,150,000 1,150,000 1,150,000
Capital Improvements 2008 .........ccoovervnenns 1.000.000 1,000,000
TOTAL . $ 1875000 $§ 2.875.000 $ 1.875.000 $ _2.875.000

The bond anticipation notes mature August 21, 2008, and carry an interest rate of 4.00%. The notes

were issued to provide interim funding for various capital projects.
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III. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

E. Short-Term Obligations - Bond Anticipation Notes (Continued)

Subsequent Event

On August 21, 2008, the Town issued $2,875,000 of bond anticipation notes with an interest rate of
2.49% maturing October 30, 2008. On October 30, 2008, the Town issued $7,500,000 of bond
anticipation notes with an interest rate of 3.24% maturing September 16, 2009. The notes will be used
to refund a portion of the bond anticipation notes maturing on October 30, 2008, and to provide new
money for various school and general purpose projects.

F. Changes in Long-Term Obligations

1. Summary of Changes

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations during the fiscal year:

BALANCE BALANCE
ORIGINAL DATEOF DATEOF INTEREST JULY 1, JUNE 30, CURRENT
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT ISSUE __MATURITY _RATE 2007 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2008 PORTION
BONDS/NOTES:
General Purpose:

Refunding Bond..... $ 3,906,562 10/01/98 2011 425-480% $ 1365088 § $ 390,088 § 975,000 408,200

Improvement Bond. 6,800,000 - 12/01/01 2022 4.39% 5,100,000 340,000 4,760,000 340,000

Refunding Bond..... 4,505,600 02/15/03 2016 3.44% 3,115,470 432,850 2,682,620 430,500

Improvement Bond. 6,031,000 08/15/05 2025 4.10% 5,796,000 240,000 5,556,000 260,000

Refunding Bond..... 3,609,000 08/15/05 2019 3.84% 3,185,000 420,000 2,765,000 415,000

Improvement Bond. 3,000,000 08/24/07 2028 4.1-5.5% 3.000.000 3.000.000 150,000
Total General Purpose 21.561.558 - 1,822,938 19.738.620 2.003.700
Schools:

Refunding .............. 3,038,438 10/01/98 2011 4.25-4.80% 1,284,912 384,912 900,000 376,800

Refunding ...... e 25,294,400 02/15/03 2017 3.4386% 18,744,530 2,027,150 16,717,380 2,059,500

School Bonds.......... 149,000 08/15/05 2025 4.1005% 134,000 15,000 119,000 15,000

Refunding .............. 13,991,000 08/15/05 2019 3.8399% 12,980,000 1,060,000 11.920.000 1.130.000
TOtAl SCROOIS.....cverireererercineserenresmisesmsessen s bbb s bbbt bes b esssaesessass 33.143.442 - 3.487.062 - 29.656.380 3.581.300
Sewer:

Sewer Bond.......... 5,000,000 12/01/01 2016 4.3899% 3.240.000 360,000 2.880.000 360,000
TOTAL BONDS/NOTES etraeeneret et s et bt s 57,945,000 - 5,670,000 52,275,000 5,945,000
DEFERRED CHARGES.......ccccounmnrerinins (__642.668) (69129 ( 573539
TOTAL BONDS/NOTES AND RELATED LIABILITIES.......ccconvvvrivrennnnns 57,302,332 - 5,600,871 51,701,461 5,945,000
COMPENSATED ABSENCES ....covverirerermisssmnsmsesismisersmsiseensesssesssasssses 7,337,741 2,982,617 2,678,607 7,641,751 1,528,350
CAPITAL LEASES 508,508 246,508 262,000 262,000
LANDFILL CLOSURE COSTS 94.844 94.844
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS $ 65243425 $ 2982617 $ 8525986 $ 59700056 $ 7,735.350
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IIl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

F.

Changes in Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

1. Summary of Changes (Continued)

The following is a summary of amounts to be provided by the State of Connecticut for the

retirement of school bonds and bond and note maturities:

FISCAL AMOUNT TO AMOUNT TO
YEAR BEPROVIDED BE PROVIDED BONDS

ENDED BY STATE BY STATE

JUNE 30 PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2009 $ 1,769,702 $ 593916 $ 5,945,000 $ 2,043,611
2010 1,835,452 519,798 5,620,000 1,820,586
2011 1,685,915 446,579 5,500,000 1,599,372
2012 1,623,707 374,251 5,170,000 1,381,392
2013 1,625,313 307,591 5,150,000 1,172,842
2014 1,531,783 244,906 4,900,000 972,312
2015 1,429,567 181,563 4,660,000 769,370
2016 1,430,129 117,053 4,285,000 570,118
2017 1,050,385 63,363 3,035,000 410,491
2018 629,385 28,219 2,050,000 302,388
2019 339,628 7,259 1,490,000 225,888
2020 840,000 175,275
2021 840,000 137,938
2022 840,000 100,950
2023 500,000 72,250
2024 500,000 51,363
2025 500,000 30,263
2026 150,000 16,388
2027 150,000 9,844
2028 150.000 3.281

TOTALS $ 14950.966 $ 2884498 $ 52.275,000 11 22

All long-term liabilities listed above after bonds and notes are generally liquidated by the General

‘Fund.

The Town’s indebtedness does not exceed the legal debt limitations as required by Connecticut
General Statutes as reflected in the following schedule:

NET
CATEGORY DEBT LIMIT INDEBTEDNESS BALANCE
General PUrpOSE.......eecereemsesncesne $ 113,309,156 $ 22,613,620 $ 90,695,536
Schools 226,618,313 14,705,414 - 211,912,899
Sewers 188,848,594 2,880,000 185,968,594
Urban renewal .....cccooeerceererensencenes 163,668,781 163,668,781
Pension deficit......cccecereerereeneenvnees 151,078,875 151,078,875

The total overall statutory debt limit for the Town is equal to seven times annual receipts from

taxation, $352,517,375.

The indebtedness reflected above includes bonds outstanding in addition to the amount of bonds
authorized and unissued against which bond anticipation notes are issued and outstanding. School
building grants receivable of $14,950,966 for bond principal is reflected as deductions in the
computation of net indebtedness.
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III. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

F. Changes in Long-Term Obligations (Continued)
2. Capital Leases

The Town is committed under a multi-year capital lease for the acquisition of computers to be used
in the public schools.

Capital leases that are capitalized under the category of equipment totaled $736,687 at June 30,
2008.

These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been
recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as for the date of their
inception.

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under these capital leases, and
the present value of the net minimum lease payments:

YEAR ENDING
JUNE 30 AMOUNT
2009 : $ 262,000

Less: amount representing interest -

Present value of minimum lease payments $ 262,000

3. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

State and Federal laws and regulations require landfill closures to meet certain standards. The
Town is in the process of finalizing an agreement with the State Department of Environmental
Protection for final closing of the land fill. The monitoring costs for the next 30 years at $3,161 per
year are $94,844. These amounts are based on estimates which are subject to change due to
inflation, technology or applicable laws and regulations.

4. Authorized/Unissued Bonds

At June 30, 2008, the Town had authorized and unissued bonds as follows:

AUTHORIZED/
UNISSUED BONDS
General PUIPOSE ....vvererevreeeerereenesenenerennesecscsereuranes $ 8,035,000
SCROOIS «.evveirrerierrccrr et esnaerenees 9.525.000
TOUAL vttt neenes ~ $17.560.000

5. Prior Years' Advanced Refunding

In prior years, the Town has defeased a bond issue by creating a separate irrevocable trust fund.
New debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S. government securities
that were placed in the trust fund. The investments and fixed earnings from the investments are
sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. For financial
reporting purposes, the debt has been considered defeased and, therefore, removed as a liability
from the Town's financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the amount of defeased debt outstanding
but removed from the Town's financial statements amounted to $33,270,000.
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to public official liability, police liability, Board of
Education legal liability, theft or impairment of assets, errors and omissions, injury to employees and
natural disasters. The Town purchases commercial insurance for all risks of loss, including blanket and
umbrella policies. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three years,
and there have not been any significant reductions in insurance coverage from amounts held in prior
years.

The Town established internal service funds, the Medical Insurance Fund and the Workers’
Compensation Fund, to account for and finance the retained risk of loss for Town Employee medical
benefits coverage and workers’ compensation claims. A third party administers the plans for which the
fund pays a fee.

The Town has purchased a stop loss policy for individual claims exceeding $100,000 for the medical
insurance, and $500,000 for the workers’ compensation fund.

In addition, the Town has established an Internal Service Fund to reduce the cost of commercial
insurance by raising the deductibles on the policies purchased.

The claims liability reported is based upon the requirements of GASB Statements No. 10 and 30, which
require that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial
statements indicates that it is possible that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial
statements and the amount of the possible loss can be reasonably estimated. The amount of claim
accrual is based on the ultimate costs of settling the claim, which include past experience data, inflation
and other future economic and societal factors and incremental claim adjustment expenses, net of
estimated subrogation recoveries. The claim accrual does not include other allocated or unallocated
claims adjustment expenses. ‘

CURRENT
CLAIMS YEAR CLAIMS CLAIMS
PAYABLE AND CHANGES CLAIMS PAYABLE
JULY 1, IN ESTIMATES PAID JUNE 30,
Self-Insurance Fund:
2007 $ 585,300 $ 217,014 $ 217,014 $ 585,300
2008 585,300 238,593 233,593 590,300
Workers’ Compensation Fund:
2007 $ 788,876 $2,581,533 $1,864,831 $1,505,578
2008 1,505,578 3,507,679 2,647,363 2,365,894
Medical Insurance Fund:
2007 $ 751,770 $7,671,559 $7,681,007 $ 742,322
2008 742,322 8,619,393 8,570,872 790,843

B. Commitments and Litigation

There are various suits and claims pending against the Town, none of which, individually or in the
aggregate, is believed by legal counsel to be likely to result in a judgment or judgments, which would
materially affect the Town's financial position.
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1V, OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

C. Pension Plans

Municipal Employees’ Retirement Fund

a. Plan Description

All Town employees participate in the Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS). MERS
is the administrator of a cost-sharing, multiple employer public employee retirement system (PERS)
established by the State of Connecticut and administered by the State Retirement Commission to
provide pension benefits for the employees of participating municipalities. The Pension
Commission makes recommendations for plan provisions which are approved by the Board of
Finance. MERS is considered to be a part of the State of Connecticut’s financial reporting entity
and is included in the State's financial reports as a pension trust fund. MERS issues a publicly
available financial report which may be obtained by writing to the State of Connecticut Retirement
and Benefit Services Division, Office of the State Comptroller, 55 Elm Street, Hartford, CT 06106.

b. Plan Provisions

Plan provisions are set by Statute of the State of Connecticut. MERS provides retirement benefits,
as well as death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after 5 years of continuous service.
Members who retire after age 55 with 10 years of service or after 25 years of service, irrespective of
age, are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life.

¢. Funding Policy

Covered employees are required by State Statute to contribute 2%4% of earnings upon which Social
Security tax is paid, plus 5% of earnings on which no Social Security tax is paid. Each participating
municipality is required to contribute the amounts necessary to finance the remaining costs of the
plan.

The required and actual contributions for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were
. $882,290, $911,420 and $1,257,771, respectively.

D. Postemployment Benefits

The Town and Board of Education provide postemployment benefits for certain retirees who meet
certain requirements regarding age and years of service. This benefit is provided based on union
agreements of the police department and school administrators. The number of employees covered, and
related costs are as follows: :

NUMBER
EMPLOYEES
COVERED AMOUNT
Town 100 $ 867,463
Board of Education 383 2.345.905
Total 483 $ 3213368

The amounts are funded on an annual basis by General Fund appropriations.
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

E. On-Behalf Payments

The amount of the State Teachers’ Retirement Plan contribution recognized in the General Fund
intergovernmental revenues and education expenditures for contributions made by the State on-behalf of
the Town’s teachers was $10,439,512.

F. Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) Limits and Stock Market

Subsequent to June 30, 2008, the stock market experienced a significant decline in value. The Town
Council continues to monitor its investments closely in accordance with its investment policy and asset
allocation.

On October 3, 2008, FDIC deposit insurance temporarily increased from $100,000 to $250,000 per
depositor through December 31, 2009.
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General
Fund

The general fund is the principal fund of the Town and is used to account for all activities of the Town,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund accounts for the normal
recurring activities of the Town (i.e., general government, public safety, public works, culture and
recreation, health and welfare, development and conservation, benefits and insurance, education, etc.).
These activities are funded principally by property taxes, user fees and grants from other governmental
units.



TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

SCHEDULE 1

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
VARIANCE
WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
PROPERTY TAXES:
Real estate $ 45,697,644 5 45,697,644 S 44,674,727 (1,022,917)
Motor vehicle & personal property.......ommesrecens 3,539,501 3,539,501 3,944,498 404,997
Supplemental motor vehicle. 596,000 596,000 393,536 (202,464)
Delinquent taxes 865,000 865,000 608,024 (256,976)
Suspense collection 155,000 155,000 139,071 (15,929)
Interest, penalties & liens 650,000 650,000 433,749 (216,251)
Telecommunication property taX.............ccoveeeinns 121,736 121,736 119,004 (2.732)
TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES... 51,624,881 51,624,881 50,312,609 (1,312,272)
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES:
State aid school construction, 2,625,000 2,625,000 2,372,654 (252,346)
Health & welfare non public school.. 27,585 27,585 52,378 24,793
Pupil transportation............... 454,734 454,734 419,753 (34,981)
Education block grant. 18,445,843 18,445,843 17,983,752 (462,091)
PIL.OT. state property. 346,495 346,495 379,079 32,584
P.LL.O.T. Pequot funds. 272,823 272,823 271,777 4,954
PLL.O.T. water authority.........cco oo cvennnenn 486,035 486,035 486,035 -
PIL.O.T. GNHWPCA........ 63,000 63,000 63,000 -
Casino assistance grant.. 751,527 751,527 (751,527)
Elderly circuit breaker... ... 356,830 356,830 342,391 (14,439)
Tax relief elderly...... 25,543 25,543 19,639 (5,904)
Veterans' exemption... 90,977 90,977 82,649 (8,328)
Disability reimbursement.. . 5,073 5,073 5,096 23
Manufacturer equipment..........cov e eeveeann e 32,500 32,500 30,074 (2,426)
P.LL.O.T. aircraft 3,000 3,000 (3,000)
Off Track Betting (OTB)... 49,500 49,500 66,330 16,830
General assistance reimb... 1,000 1,000 (1,000)
State of CT. dept of children. 22,500 22,500 22.059 {441)
TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES........ 24,059,965 24,059,965 22,602,666 (1,457,299)
INVESTMENT INCOME... .....coouminrnneneneisersssnes 625,000 625,000 - 393,890 (231,110)
CHARGES FOR SERVICES:
Zoning board of app 7,000 7,000 3444 (3,556)
Zoning fees 33,000 33,000 19,156 (13,844)
Police permits, tags, etc. 9,000 9,000 10,987 1,987
Fire permits/fee 1,000 1,000 1,280 280
Town clerk fees. 795,000 795,000 546,067 (248,933)
Building dept permit: 250,000 250,000 231,610 (18,390)
Recreation fees. 90,000 90,000 99,745 9,745
Pool fees 12,500 12,500 17,592 5,092
Athletic complex fees 285,000 285,000 274,668 (10,332)
C.AM. fees. 500 500 100 (400)
Human services fees. 173,500 173,500 129,054 (44,446)
Landfill fees 22,000 22,000 20,862 (1,138)
Solid waste hauler fees, 20,500 20,500 11,850 (8,650)
Inland/wetland prints 950 950 130 (820)
Flood and erosion. 4,250 4,250 2,420 (1,830)
Police special 750,000 750,000 729,888 (20,112)
Sale of town property. 78,339 78,339 5,145 {73,194)
TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES.........cocecuminenn: 2,532,539 2,532,539 2,103,998 (428,541)
OTHER REVENUES:
Miscellaneou 154,609 154,609 39,663 (114,946)
TOTAL REVENUES 78,996,994 78,996,994 75,452,826 (3,544,168)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Appropriation: of fund balance 600,000 600,000 (600,000)
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES. $ 79,596,994 3 79,596,994 $ 75452826 (4,144,168)
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SCHEDULE 2

(10f2)
GENERAL FUND :
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
VARIANCE
WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Town council . 3 56,500 $ 73,800 $ 71,051 3 2,749
Board of fInance... ... .ccveveeveeveriesieerneneren s ere cenan 6,600 6,600 6,600 -
Mayor 143,004 143,004 130,594 12,410
Finance 349,327 349,327 334,606 14,721
Purchasing 64,167 65,167 64,783 384
Tax collector. 242,555 242,555 238,924 3,631
Assessor. 246,380 250,480 245,211 5,269
Personnel, administration and management..........c.co.oen. 326,832 351,332 325,544 25,788
Board of assessment appeals 1,600 2,000 1,900 100
Town clerk 237,945 237,945 220,419 17,526
Registrar of Voters 81,155 128,633 124,036 4,597
Planning & zoning 154,790 154,790 149,194 5,596
Zoning board of appeals 6,025 6,025 1,846 4,179
Legal 251,800 352,000 338,298 13,702
Probate 6,900 6,900 6,796 104
Civil service. 43,969 50,469 48,716 1,753
Flood & erosion 1,350 1,350 9500 450
Inland/wetland 2,250 2,250 1,132 1,118
School building committee 1,990 1,990 1,871 119
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT.......cccooveveinnnn 2,225,139 2,426,617 2,312,421 114,196
PUBLIC SAFETY:
Board of police commissioners 2,224 2,624 1,424 1,200
Canine control 151,060 158,060 150,899 7,161
Police Departments 4,369,315 4,855,911 4,843.913 11,998
Board of fire commissioners. 12,750 12,840 12,834 6
Fire department. 4,644,174 4,682,084 4,659,538 22,546
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY ...oiivei ot e e 9,179,523 9,711,519 9,668,608 42,911
HIGHWAYS AND ENGINEERING:
Engineering 204,411 204,411 198,729 5,682
Highways 1,999,173 1,999,173 1,978,667 20,506
TOTAL HIGHWAYS AND ENGINEERING.............. 2,203,584 2,203,584 2,177,396 26,188
SANITATION AND MAINTENANCE:
Building department..........c.ccocov eeviet v ine e 157,691 157,691 135,251 22,440
Sanitation 2,345,091 2,345,091 2,231,635 113,456
Building maintenance... ... .. .c.coveeerrceriieveennneoens 647,860 697,360 631,133 66,227
TOTAL SANITATION AND MAINTENANCE.......... 3,150,642 3,200,142 2,998,019 202,123
HEALTH AND WELFARE:
Public health 210,530 210,530 207,901 2,629
Social services 76,540 76,540 65,102 11,438
Housing code 2,000 2,000 2,000
Counseling & community services 542,162 542,162 523,660 18,502
Housing authority. 81,592 81,592 64,131 17,461
Urban renewal, 65,574 65,574 63,943 1,631
TOTAL HEALTH AND WELFARE............ceocieeene 978,398 978,398 924,737 53,661
(Continued)
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SCHEDULE 2

(2 0f2)
TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)
VARIANCE
WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
CULTURE AND RECREATION:
Recreation $ 494,936 $ 491,460 b 472,675 b3 18,785
Recreation - ice rink 473,781 477,257 450,324 26,933
Senior center 205,726 205,726 194,536 11,190
Community services. 127,700 126,700 122,849 3,851
TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION......cc..uv. ot 1,302,143 1,301,143 1,240,384 60,759
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND INSURANCE:
Employee benefits 5,701,529 5,622,029 5,373,165 248,864
TISUFANCE...vv et vvsvas eereee aeereteeesee seeses sos s neaan s ae 1,567,609 1,567,609 1,492,978 74,631
TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND INSURANCE.. 7,269,138 7,189,638 6,866,143 323,495
EDUCATION... ..ottt ittt v vt rer cee eretee e e 42,352,612 42,352,612 42,352,612 -
GENERAL SERVICES.......oo vt it e v e e 2,792,500 1,999,082 1,865,617 133,465
DEBT SERVICE:
Principal..... ... vvvvevei it iee e e e s e e 5,310,000 5,310,000 5,310,000 -
TIEEIESE vt vt et s e et rrn cee ceecee ten ceeeee ressee e e 2,169,291 2,260,235 2,260,235 -
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE... ... coovvtiinieeceeeeecee e 7,479,291 7,570,235 7,570,235 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES......cosoetveinevveeeeveeceevenans 78,932,970 78,932,970 77,976,172 956,798
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfer OUb... ... .oeveeveecer i e e et creeee see vee e 664,024 664,024 664,024 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES....ccioiiiiietiieciniee e e $ 79,596,994 $ 79,596,994 $ 78,640,196 $ 956,798
(Concluded)
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| e e R B s s AR O S
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for
particular purposes.

Public Safety Hagaman Memorial Library
Historical Documents Preservation | Michael Street Playground
Economic Development Health and Welfare

Town Pool Repair Land Acquisition

Open Space Emergency Management Fund
Marine Enforcement Grants Day Care

Public Works State Aid Athletic Department
Permanent Patch Fund High School Rental

East Haven Kennel Club School Lunch

Small Cities Education Grants

Dog Licenses

Senior Center



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for major capital asset construction
and/or purchase.

Capital Improvements 1999 Capital Improvements Revaluation and Engineering
Capital Improvements 2004 Capital Improvements 1998
Capital Improvements 2005 LOCIP
Capital Improvements 2006 CBD Revitalization Construction Phase I
Capital Improvements 2008 147 Cosey Beach Avenue Purchase
Road Bonding 2008 LOCIP Town Clerk Fees
Permanent Funds

Permanent funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, not
principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting government’s programs.

J. Woodward Thompson Education Fund
Library Fund

Elizabeth McHardy Trust

Isaac Hagaman Library Fund

A.J. Berman Library Fund
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Internal Service
Funds

Internal Service funds are used to account for the providing of goods or services provided by one department to
other departments of the Town on a cost reimbursement basis or accounting for risk retention as allowed by
GASB Statement No. 10. :

Workers' Compensation Fund

To account for the provision of Workers' Compensation Insurance for the Town. All activities necessary to
provide such coverage are accounted for in this fund.

Medical Insurance Fund

To account for self-insured medical benefits for Town employees.

Self-Insurance Reserve

To account for the resources used to pay various claims and judgments.



SCHEDULE 6

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008
SELF-
INSURANCE WORKERS' MEDICAL
RESERVE COMPENSATION INSURANCE TOTAL
ASSETS
1071 1 OO YOO U U TOUPUR O 3 $ 200,017 $ 1,060,654 $ 1,260,671
INVEStMENLS.....coveeirreeeererreerenrnens 1,227,387 1,993,487 2,211,550 5,432,424
Accounts receivable. 52,364 52,364
Due from other funds 443,888 443,888
TOTAL ASSETS.....ooeeeeeereeverresresernnesssesaeseseas 1,227,387 2,193,504 3,768,456 7,189,347
LIABILITIES
Claims and judgments payable.........ccccocrriiirininnne 590,300 2,365,894 790,843 3,747,037
Due to other funds.........ocoeeeeveieieverirrrereeeereeveneerens 43,966 1,449,999 1,493,965
TOTAL LIABILITIES......corrrermreeenirinsensseseorerenns 634,266 3,815,893 790,843 5,241,002
NET ASSETS
UNZESICIE. .o veveviieererevrerereerereaeseerresessssssessesesesses $ 593,121 3 (1,622,389) $ 2,977,613 3 1,948,345
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

SCHEDULE 7

SELF-
INSURANCE WORKERS' MEDICAL
RESERVE COMPENSATION INSURANCE TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for services $ 289,295 $ 1,509,714 9,749,033 $ 11,548,042
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Claims 238,593 3,507,679 8,619,393 12,365,665

Administration 1,240,655 1,240,655
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES.....cccccvvevvunen 238,593 3,507,679 9,860,048 13,606,320
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)...cccvvevvenennens 50,702 (1,997,965) (111,015) (2,058,278)
NONOPERATING REVENUES:

Investment iNCOME. ...vvvvvreerarrrenrnremvenons (48,002) 107,183 59,181
CHANGES INNET ASSETS.....covreeeccenene 50,702 (2,045,967) (3,832) (1,999,097)
NET ASSETS - JULY 1,2007....ccvvvvvienennnen 542,419 423,578 2,981,445 3,947,442
NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2008.......ccccvvenenee $ 593,121 $ (1,622,389) 2,977,613 $ 1,948,345
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

SCHEDULE 8

SELF-
INSURANCE WORKERS' MEDICAL
RESERVE COMPENSATION INSURANCE TOTAL
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Premiums TECEIVEd .. veuvuvrvreireie veeretereeeren ceees e reneennerean e $ 517,842 $ 2,347,272 $ 10,461,977 13,327,091

Payments t0 VEIAOIS... cov et iee e cercen e cener et ian e e b e (1,240,655) (1,240,655)

Payments for claimS. .. .....evvrvereerieeire vt cer e re e et et e e eesaes b e (233,593) (2,647,363) (8,570,872) (11,451,828)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES............ 284,249 (300,091) 650,450 634,608
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Income fom IMVESHIENIS. .. .oe.viirevereeiereivreeeerenivenrer s cnnserrrreeesnnsenens (48,002) 107,183 59,181
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS....... 284,249 (348,093) 757,633 693,789
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JULY 1,2007....ccovvniirimminecnirnninnns 943,138 2,541,597 2,514,571 5,999,306
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JUNE 30,2008.......cccevverireeeenernnenns $ 12277387 $ 2,193,504 $ 3,272,204 6,693,095
RECONCILIATION TO BALANCE SHEET CASH:

Cash and cash equivalents per above.......ccocovvviniiiiieiiiinnci i $ 1,227,387 $ 2,193,504 3 3,272,204 6,693,095

Cash and cash equivalents reported as investments... ......vvovveverveninniinvinens (1,227,387) (1,593,487) (2,211,550) (5,432,424)
BALANCE SHEET CASH. .. ....cvuviiitteereetenteceereeenmennss s ersse s e $ - $ 200,017 $ 1,060,654 1,260,671
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (L.OSS) TO NET CASH

PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (I0S8).....cvvvvruveennserivmsioieierirmmeiierneris et eeennes 3 50,702 3 (1,997,965) $ (111,015) (2,058,278)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable... ..o (11,303) (11,303)
Due from other funds.........ccouveemreetiiniieinennin i e, 184,581 724,247 908,828
Increase (decrease) in;
Claims and judgments payable..........c.cooovvivviiniiriin i 5,000 860,316 48,521 913,837
Due t0 other fUnds.....covueeeeeieeereee i iieeireer it e vve s cesnens e 43,966 837,558 881,524
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES............ $ 284,249 $ (300,091) 3 650,450 634,608
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Fiduciary
Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the Town in a trustee capacity for individuals, private
organizations, other governments, and/or other funds.

AGENCY FUNDS

Performance Bonds

To account for cash bonds and other cash and investments held by the Town to ensure compliance with
specifications and regulations with respect to various building projects and improvements.

Student Activities

These funds are used to control various activities as defined by State Statutes undertaken by students of
the public school system.



TOW

FEAST HAVE

NECTICUT

AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

SCHEDULE 9

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, JUNE 30,
2007 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2008
ASSETS

CASH:
East Haven High School Activity Fund.......... $ 91,821 $ 296,439 3 304,914 $ 83,346
Joseph Melillo Middle School Activity Fund.... 26,368 29,609 30,370 25,607
EH School Fund.......coevvvveiiieieiiiireninenennns 1,762 9 1,771
EH Highland School........cooovvviniiiiiiiinnnn, 8,893 51 8,944
BOE Medicare Account.......cocevvevuennennnnenns 16,978 30,482 46,294 1,166
Momauguin School Media.........c..coeeuvennnen 14 3,107 2,453 668
DC Moore School Library......cc.coeveveenainnnns 68 4,309 3,741 636
Adult Education......cveeevveiiiiiiioiieninnienenens 8,594 14,360 16,345 6,609
Flex Spending.....cccvvueenriecrencirieneninnnininnn 16,653 33,201 41,896 7,958
Performance bonds.......ccovvvevniirenereernnrnnenn, 11,456 11,456

TOTAL CASH...coniiiiiiiiiiircireeieecreenieanaenes 171,151 423,023 446,013 148,161

INVESTMENTS:
East Haven High School Activity Fund.......... 44,329 4,248 5,038 43,539

TOTAL ASSETS..cvvvivieeirereneinirirerenraranens $ 215,480 $ 427,271 $ 451,051 3 191,700

LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:
East Haven High School Activity Fund.......... $ 136,150 $ 300,687 $ 309,952 $ 126,885
Joseph Melillo Middle School Activity Fund.... 26,368 29,609 30,370 25,607
EH School Fund.........ccovvvnvevniiniciiiniennns 1,762 9 1,771
EH Highland School..........ccccovviiniininnnnnn. 8,893 51 8,944
BOE Medicare AcCOUNt.......cvvvuereerrerenenens 16,978 30,482 46,294 1,166
Momauguin School Media............ccoveinnnin. 14 3,107 2,453 668
DC Moore School Library.........cooevvvenennnnns 68 4,309 3,741 636
Adult Education.......cccoeeeveviieniniiinenienennens 8,594 14,360 16,345 6,609
Flex Spending........ccvvevvivniinienininninnnnnnn, 16,653 33,201 41,896 7,958
Performance bonds.........oovvvviiiviinnniennnnnns 11,456 11,456

TOTAL LIABILITIES.....oiivviiiecinieeeneneneae $ 215,480 $ 427,271 $ 451,051 $ 191,700
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Trend
Information



TABLE 1

TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT
LAST THREE YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
FISCAL YEAR
2008 2007 2006
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.............coeuvnintn $ 37,516,717 $ 32,585,690 10,602,768
Restricted for:
Endowments:
Nonexpendable.........ccooveeviviiiiiiiiiiini 100,000 100,000 100,000
Expendable.....cccovevniiiiiiiiniiiiiic e 1,963,496 2,193,639 1,667,578
UnreStriCted. .. vvvner e e eierenereenenereeaaneraensnesnsnrens 15,914,574 26,928,603 5,239,393
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES NET ASSETS....... $ 55,494,787 $ 61,807,932 17,609,739
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TABLE 2

(1 0f2)
TOWN OF FAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST THREE YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
FISCAL YEAR
2008 2007 2006
EXPENSES:
Governmental activities:

General GQOVEINMENL. ...veuriurrererreneneenereriieenerneenruseaevanse $ 5517911 $ 5,501,604 $ 8,106,306

Public SAfBLY ... eee e 14,949,291 12,710,019 12,618,534

PUDLC WOTKS. v vvirerreeeeenierrernnreeneernensaerenrersensnssenrosnses 8,709,675 8,281,435 7,535,709

Culture and 16CTEatION. ....vuvrriieie st irrrenerereecennensneenns 2,506,521 2,389,974 2,316,075

Health and Welfare......co.vvivivineierineerierererrceriienenenenenens 1,487,119 1,553,644 1,462,279

Education.......ccevevuverinrenirireeererierreeeerseeerreeeeensenens 59,780,686 48,310,573 48,719,633

INLErest EXPEMSE. cuuvvrenienrerirnerntierneuneinsicrerasnerneensanens 2,451,064 2,459,162 2,560,775

Total Governmental activities EXpenses........cccovevruiunininnenns 95,402,267 81,206,411 83,319,311

Business-type activities:

4 307 . O PO PPUPPPINE 948,162
TOTAL EXPENSES....oitiitirrtenriemrerietreeeernraeeneeasnennenennes 95,402,267 81,206,411 84,267,473
PROGRAM REVENUES:

Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
General GOVEINMENL. ... cvuvuvinrenririenieneirenienirnsrnensinnn 1,145,877 1,800,808 1,154,455
PUBLIC ALY ...t evvevirciieceice it rrie s s s vee i vaerrenneeneens 784,725 762,533 876,316
PUDBLC WOTKS. .11t evvvevnernvnrneeenrenensieearerensnsnnenesernenaenns 266,067 339,911 41,885
Culture and recreation....ocvvvviverieireirieeearerereresrnenennnes 500,184 527,920 403,708
Health and Welfare.......cveveiiiiiniienerieirrereeeneeeennenens 214,861 217,931 171,728
EdUCatiOn. . ...vvvereneireeerneneirenieeeneeererireereteseennenennees 848,760 858,575 687,627

Operating grants and contributions..........ccccevevviviiviniinnnnnn 33,285,847 23,416,379 27,894,969

Capital grants and contributions...........covveviniveiiiininninnn. 462,595 560,949 1,795,969

Total Governmental activities program revenues................... 37,508,916 28,485,006 33,026,657

Business-type activities:
4 307 . USSR TPORE 506,057
TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUES.....cvtiivirriirriirrresrsnreeennes 37,508,916 28,485,006 33,532,714
(Continued)
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TABLE 2

(2 of 2)
TOWN OF EAST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST THREE YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
FISCAL YEAR
2008 2007 2006
NET REVENUE (EXPENSES):
Governmental aCtVIHES.......oeviieiieeiiriirieerrierireerrenrenennes $ (57,893,351) $ (52,721,405) $  (50,292,654)
Business-type activities.......c.ccoeviiiiiiiiiiiiiin (442,105)
TOTAL NET EXPENSES.....cttiiiiiienneirnrnernennrereesannansans (57,893,351) (52,721,405) (50,734,759)
GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER CHANGES
IN'NET ASSETS:
Governmental activities;
Property taxes.......covenvrereiinninnns e 49,901,476 47,962,038 47,714,546
Grants and contributions not restricted to
SPECIFIC PrOGIamS. . cuvueeeienerreerieer e v e e erenens 1,203,035 1,442,446 2,540,442
Investment iNCOME. .. .ovvuiiritiierrererneeeernsereeeenenrnrnenranaens 407,672 1,217,950 799,589
MiISCEllANEOUS. . v euereee s vieverierine e e rirrararerernrererneeensosnes 68,023 48,256
Gain 01 5216 OF ASSEES. .. vvrrerreererereerrererrorinrarserseasnensneneeas 6,403
TraANS LS. v v vt veireereerereversrererenererarseeammiasssenseaserarsensenees 1,851,825
Total Governmental activities revenues.......ovvveevevivivrenenns 51,580,206 50,670,690 52,912,805
Business-type activities:
Investment INCOMIE. ....vvvtvveiniirieeeeeieneeeenerenerrrreenranens. 10,318
TranSTeIS. v iuireiiieiin e irein i e e ettt e aae (1,851,825)
EXtraordinary e, .o.eeernerereseeensrerereneneeaenreacasennencns 7,321,731
Total Business-type activities revenues...........c..cccceeunenee. - - 5,480,224
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES.......ccoiiiiiriiiincieiinierieennanns 51,580,206 50,670,690 58,393,029
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS:
Governmental aCtiVities.....oevvverieriiniiiieniinrii e, (6,313,145) (2,050,715) 2,620,151
Business-type activities........ovcvveniiiininiiinii 5,038,119
TOTAL CHANGE INNET ASSETS....cviriiiiiiiiirieicirineanens $ (6,313,145 $ (2,050,715) $ 7,658,270
(Concluded)
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SCHEDULE OF DEBT LIMITATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

TABLE 3

Total tax collections (including interest and lien fees) for current year.

Reimbursement for revenue loss on:
Tax relief for elderly freeze

BASE FOR DEBT LIMITATION COMPUTATION

$ 50,339,986

19,639

S 50359625

GENERAL URBAN PENSION
PURPOSES SCHOOLS SEWERS RENEWAL DEFICIT
DEBT LIMITATION:
2 1/4 times base. $ 113,309,156 $ $ 3
4 1/2 times base 226,618,313
3 3/4 times base 188,848,594
3 1/4 times base. 163,668,781
3 times base. 151,078,875
TOTAL DEBT LIMITATION.....ccccocovmnnnne 113,309,156 226,618,313 188,848,594 163,668,781 151,078,875
INDEBTEDNESS:
Bonds payable 19,738,620 29,656,380 2,880,000
Bonds anticipation notes payable 2,875,000
Less: School building grants............cccceeeen (14,950,966)
NET INDEBTEDNESS (1)..cccconmeemncvercncas 22,613,620 14,705,414 2,880,000 - -
DEBT LIMITATION IN EXCESS
OF OUTSTANDING AND
AUTHORIZED DEBT......cooccovvrneevennenns $ 90,695,536 211,912,899 $ 185,968,594 $ 163,668,781 $ 151,078,875

(1) The total of the above net indebtedness amounts to:

In no event shall total indebtedness exceed seven times the base for debt limitation computation.

(2) There is no overlapping debt for the Town of East Haven.

68

S 40,199.03

8 352517375



